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I. RECOMMENDATION 

The Independent Review Board recommends to the IBT 

General President, Ron Carey, that Arthur L. Busby ("Busby"), 

President of Local 246, be charged with bringing reproach upon the 

IBT, breaching his fiduciary duties and embezzling approximately 

$3,967.00 in Local 246 funds.* This figure represents personal 

charges, including a $2,400 plumbing bill for work done in 1991 on 

Busby's residence, which Busby incurred on the Local's American 

Express card and caused the Local to pay.^ 

II. SUMMARY 

Local 246, located in Washington, D.C., consists of 

approximately 1,700 dairy, law enforcement, bakery and nursing home 

employees. (Ex. 5 at 10-11) Arthur Busby became a full-time Local 

246 officer in 1987. (Ex. 5 at 4-5) He is currently the President 

* As discussed below, even if Busby's conduct did not rise to 
the level of embezzlement, at a minimum he received a loan from 
Local 246 in excess of $2,000 in violation of 29 U.S.C. §503(a), a 
criminal offense. 

^ Subsequent to the Chief Investigator's books and records 
examination at the Local on November 13, 1995 (Ex. 1), Busby paid 
the Local a total of $5,084.88 which represented repayment for the 
personal items plus interest. (Exs. 2 and 3) 



and principal officer and is paid a salary of $57,000 per annum. 

(Ex. 5 at 8) Busby is also the President of Joint Council 55 in 

Washington, DC and, on or about July 22, 1994, Busby was appointed 

the Trustee of Local 103 in Baltimore, Maryland. 

Based upon investigation, it appears that between 1990 

and the present, Busby embezzled approximately $3,967 of Local 246 

funds by causing personal items to be charged on the Local's 

American Express bill and causing the Local to pay for such items. 

(Ex. 6) For example, on or about August 9, 1991, a $2,400 charge 

was made on the Local 246 American Express card for plumbing work 

done on Busby's home. Although this charge was unrelated to union 

business and there was no benefit to the Local for this charge, the 

Local 246 Defense Fund paid for this charge.^ Beside the $2,400 

plumbing bill, on at least ten additional occasions between 1991 

and 1993, Busby charged personal items on the Local's credit card 

and caused the Local to pay for such items. On at least one 

occasion, because Busby failed to pay for his personal items, the 

Local was forced to pay a $20 delinquency fee to American Express. 

Only after the Chief Investigator's books and records examination 

was conducted in November 1995 Busby repaid the Local for the 

personal expense the Local paid on his behalf. 

Based upon this conduct, it appears that Busby violated 

Article II, Section 2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2) and 

^ In addition to the Local's general fund, Local 246 has a 
Defense Fund. (Ex. 5 at 16) According to Busby, the Defense Fund 
is to be used to pay members' lost wages, the accountant and 
attorney's fees and expenses for union meetings. (Ex. 5 at 16-17) 



(3) of the IBT Constitution by embezzling approximately $3,967.00 
in Local 246 funds and receiving loans from the Local in excess of 
$2,000 in violation of federal law. 
III. INVESTIGATIVE FINDINGS 

A. Busby Breached his Fiduciary Duties and 
Embezzled $3,967.00 from Local 246 
Between September 1990 and December 1993, on at least 

eleven occasions Busby paid for personal items using the American 

Express credit card Local 246 provided for his use in connection 

with union business. (Ex. 6) Local 246 then paid for these items. 

(Ex. 6) Busby did not repay the Local for the expense until after 

the IRB examination of the Local's records in November 1995. The 

personal items Busby had the Local pay for totalled approximately 

$3,967. (Ex. 6) 

For example, on or about August 9, 1991, $2,400 for 

plumbing repairs to Busby's home was charged on the Local's 

American Express card. (Ex. 8; Ex. 5 at 46-50) During his 

November 29, 1995 sworn examination, Busby testified that sometime 

during the summer of 1991 he was out of town for personal business 

and a pipe burst at his home. (Ex. 5 at 47) Busby testified that 

he spoke to his wife about the broken pipe and told her to use his 

credit card to have the repairs done. (Ex. 5 at 47) Busby then 

testified that his wife must have "inadvertently" used the Local's 

credit card instead of his own personal credit card. (Ex. 5 at 47)** 

^ Even if at the time of this charge Busby's intent was 
innocent, as discussed below, Busby's failure to pay the Local for 
this $2,400 charge for more than four years evidenced that at some 
point his intent became fraudulent. 



The Local's American Express bill with the closing date 

August 13, 1991 reflected a $2,400 charge to John C. Flood, the 

plumber who repaired Busby's home. (Ex. 8; Ex. 12 at 30) On or 

about October 10, 1991, $2,563 was transferred from the Local's 

general fund to the Local's Defense Fund. (Ex. 9) On October 31, 

1991, a check was issued from the Local's Defense Fund in the 

amount of $3,083.87 to American Express. (Ex. 10) This check 

represented payment for the entire American Express bill with the 

closing date August 13, 1991. (Ex. 10) Busby signed this check. 

(Ex. 10) 

In September and October 1990, Busby had repairs done on 

his automobile. (Ex. 11; Ex. 5 at 8) According to Busby, the Local 

provided him a car allowance which covered maintenance for his 

personal car which he used for union business. (Ex. 5 at 8) The 

1990 repairs to Busby's car, which totalled $857.12, were charged 

to the Local's American Express card. (Ex. 11)^ During his sworn 

examination, Busby testified that the carburetor on his car needed 

repair and he requested that the Local pay half the charges. (Ex. 

5 at 8-9) According to Busby and Local 246 Vice President Eddie 

Vaden, the Local's Executive Board agreed to pay half the repair 

bill and Busby would pay half the bill. (Ex. 5 at 8-9; Ex. 12 at 

^ The charges included the following: a $482.68 charge at 
Midas Muffler on October 9, 1990; a $158.95 charge at Meineke 
Discount Mufflers on September 14, 1990 and a $215.49 charge at 
Meineke Discount Mufflers on September 13, 1990. (Ex. 11) 



l O - l l ) ^ According to this testimony, Busby was required to pay 
$428.56 which represented half of the $857.12 total cost of the 
repairs.^ However, Busby did not pay this amount and the Local 
paid the entire bill. (Ex. 13) 

Between September 1990 and August 9, 1991, Busby charged 
a total of $2,891.34 in personal charges on the Local's American 
Express card and then failed to pay for these charges. (Ex. 6) The 
Local paid for each of these items in 1991. (Ex. 6) The Local's 
Form LM-2 filed with the Department of Labor for 1991 reflected 
that for 1991 there was an outstanding loan to Busby in the amount 
of $2,891. (Ex. 16)S Pursuant to 29 U.S.C. §503 (a), a Local union 
is prohibited from making a loan over $2,000 to any officer. 

Busby signed the Local's 1991 LM-2. (Ex. 16) During his 
sworn examination, Busby was asked whether he reviewed the 1991 LM-
2 before he signed it and he responded, "[n]o, not really. I just 
flipped through it and assumed that it was fine. I signed it." 
(Ex. 5 at 33)9 ^g discussed below, the Local 246 LM-2s for 1992 

^ The minutes for the Local 246 Executive Board meetings for 
1990 and 1991 do not contain any mention of such a discussion. (Ex. 
15) 

^ On the American Express bill which included these car repair 
charges there was a handwritten note which stated one half next to 
the car repair charges. (Ex. 11) 

^ It appears that since Busby failed to repay the personal 
items on the Local's credit card, in preparing the LM-2 the Local's 
accountant treated the total amount of the personal charges as a 
loan to Busby. (Ex. 5 at 31-33) 

^ With respect to the $2,400 plumbing bill, Busby testified, 
I guess due to my stupidity, I never realized that this 
happened. And I was not notified that this had happened. 



through 1994 also reflected that the Local had an outstanding loan 

to Busby of over $2,000. (Exs. 17-19) 

In addition to the personal charges described above, in 

1991, Busby also charged additional personal items on the Local's 

credit card and caused the Local to pay for such charges. (Ex. 6)*° 

The Local paid for these charges in 1992. (Ex. 6) The Local's 

American Express bill with the closing date October 13, 1991, 

reflected four personal charges Busby incurred. (Ex. 20)" These 

four items, which totalled $489.12, were marked with a handwritten 

"B" on the American Express bill. (Ex. 20) The Local did not 

initially pay for these four items. However, after a $20 

delinquency charge was assessed on the Local's December 11, 1991 

American Express bill for the failure to pay for these four items, 

which totalled $489.12. (Ex. 21) On January 1, 1992 the Local 

paid the delinquency charge as well as the charges for the four 

personal items. (Ex. 22) Busby signed the January 1, 1992 Local 

* * * 

And I guess if I had known that, I would have went and 
paid it. But not knowing it, I didn't pay it. You can 
say it was, like I say, stupidity on my part. But it 
never came to my attention. Even though I got the LM-2 
thereafter, I just signed the LM-2 and assumed that there 
was no problem. That's the only explanation I have for 
it. 

(Ex. 5 at 47-48) 

These charges were described as a loan to Busby on the 
Local's 1992 Form LM-2. (Ex. 17) 

" These four items included the following charges: $278.64 at 
Holiday Inn-Oceanfront; $56.20 at Fager's Island; $60.00 at The 
Club and $94.28 at Morton's Family Apparel. (Ex. 20) 



246 check to American Express which included payment for his four 

personal items. (Exs. 21 and 22) 

Also in 1991, Busby incurred two additional personal 

charges for Amtrak tickets on the Local's American Express card. 

(Ex. 21)^ Although both items were marked on the American Express 

bill with the notation "Buz owes" (Ex. 21; Ex. 5 at 40-41), by 

check dated January 1, 1992, Local 246 paid for these charges. (Ex. 

22) 

The Form LM-2 for 1992 reflected that Local 246 made an 

additional loan of $721.00 to Busby that year. (Ex. 17)^ The 1992 

LM-2 also included the $2,891 loan amount for 1991 for which Busby 

had not made any repayment. (Ex. 17) As a result, the 1992 LM-2 

reflected total outstanding loans to Busby of $3,612. (Ex. 17) 

On or about June 1, 1993, Busby caused the Local to pay 

for a charge to Northwest Airlines for $355.00. (Ex. 23) The 

handwritten notation "Buz" and then an illegible notation appeared 

next to this charge on the American Express bill. (Ex. 23) On July 

1, 1993 Local 246 paid for this charge. (Ex. 24) 

The Local's LM-2 for 1993 stated that in 1993 a loan was 

made to Busby in the amount of $355.00. (Ex. 18) The 1993 LM-2 

continued to reflect the unpaid balance of the personal charges 

^ The first charge was in the amount of $46.00 and was made 
on or about November 7, 1991 and the second charge was made on or 
about December 6, 1991 and was for $166.00. (Ex. 21) 

The $721 figure appears to have been obtained by adding the 
$489.12 total of the four charges on the October 13, 1991 American 
Express bill together with the $20.00 delinquency charge and the 
two Amtrak charges of $46.00 and $166.00. (Ex. 6) 



Busby incurred in 1991 and 1992. (Ex. 18) As a result, the 1993 
LM-2 showed that Busby owed the Local $3,967. (Ex. 18) 

The LM-2 the Local filed in 1994 also showed a loan to 
Busby with an outstanding balance of $3,967. (Ex. 19) Accordingly, 
it does not appear that Busby made any payments to the Local for 
personal items the Local paid for between the time they were 
incurred and the time that the Chief Investigator began the books 
and records examination at the Local. 

On November 13, 1995, members of the Chief Investigator's 
staff began a books and records examination at the Local. (Ex. 1) 
During this examination, questions were asked about the loan to 
Busby reflected on the Local's LM-2. (Ex. 5 at 30) On November 20, 
1995, Busby issued a personal check in the amount of $3,000 to the 
Local and on November 24, 1995 he issued another personal check in 
the amount of $2,084.88. (Exs. 2 and 3) The total amount Busby 
repaid was $5,084.88.*** Busby's repayment after an investigation 
began does not provide a defense to an embezzlement charge.^ In 

The personal charges Busby incurred totalled $3,966.96. 
Busby's repayment of $5,084.88 represented the total personal 
charges plus interest in the amount of $1,117.92, which was ten 
percent computed yearly on the unpaid balance. 

^ On November 30, 1995, the Chief Investigator requested 
that Busby provide copies of all his personal checks payable to 
American Express to pay for any item he charged on the Local's 
American Express account. (Ex. 29) In response, on November 30 
and on January 10, 1996, Busby submitted several personal checks 
payable to American Express or Local 246. However, the checks 
submitted confirm that Busby failed to repay the $3,967.46 prior to 
the Chief Investigator's books and records review. 

The checks Busby submitted revealed that at times Busby wrote 
checks to American Express or the Local to satisfy personal charges 
incurred during the prior month. All but two of the checks Busby 



1992 at 6, the Independent Administrator found that Baccaro's 

reimbursement to the Local only after being informed of possible 

embezzlement charges was "evidence of Baccaro's intent to deprive 

his Local of its funds." The Independent Administrator found that 

"[t]o find otherwise would be to invite an intolerable situation 

where those committing financial wrongdoing would simply wait and 

see if they are discovered before deciding whether to make 

restitution." Id.*" 

B. Standard for Embezzlement 

In order for an embezzlement charge to be proven, it must 

be shown that the charged party had the fraudulent intent to 

embezzle. See, United States v. Welch, 728 F.2d 1113, 1118 (8th 

submitted were able to be reconciled with certain of Busby's 
personal charges on the Local's charge card. However, two of the 
checks Busby submitted, check number 107 in the amount of $1,109.36 
dated January 25, 1991 and check number 324 in the amount of 
$892.96, dated, November 19, 1992, (Ex. 30), could not be matched 
to any of Busby's personal charges. Therefore, by letter of 
January 19, 1996 Busby, through counsel, was asked to advise 
whether the aforementioned two checks were for personal charges he 
incurred on the Local's credit card account. (Ex. 31) On January 
22, 1996, Busby responded that checks number 107 and 324 were 
payments made on his own American Express account, not the Local's 
account. (Ex. 32) Thus, the checks Busby submitted on November 30 
1995 and January 10, 1996 did not affect the conclusion that 
Busby's personal charges in the amount of $3,967.46 were not repaid 
until after the Chief Investigator's books and records examination 
at the Local. 

Also after the Chief Investigator's books and records 
examination, the Local issued a policy stating that the Local had 
ended the practice of allowing officers to charge personal items on 
the Local's American Express card. (Ex. 5 at 63; Ex. 7) Busby 
testified that he was not aware of any of the Local's other current 
officers charging personal items on the Local's American Express 
card. (Ex. 5 at 64) However, Busby testified that he believed that 
a prior officer may have engaged in this practice. (Ex. 5 at 64) 



Cir. 1989) ("under any test, union officials violate Section 501(c) 

only when they possess fraudulent intent to deprive the Union of 

its funds.") Here, Busby's intent to embezzle was demonstrated by 

his pattern of charging personal items on the Local's credit card 

and causing the Local to pay for such items. Moreover, Busby used 

Local funds to pay for repairs to his home. This $2,400 charge was 

purely personal and was of no benefit to the Local. In addition, 

Busby failed to pay for half of the repairs to his car even though 

he and Local 246 officer Vaden testified that it was agreed at an 

Executive Board meeting that Busby would pay for half the charges. 

Busby's intent to embezzle was also shown by the fact 

that in each year between 1991 and 1994 Busby signed the Local's 

Form LM-2 which reflected the outstanding amounts he owed to the 

Local as loans. There were no documents reflecting any intent that 

these were loans and indicating any terms or timing for repayment. 

Moreover, Busby did not repay the Local for these personal items, 

the majority of which were incurred in 1991, until after the Chief 

Investigator's office examined the Local's books and records and 

questioned the loan reflected on the Local's LM-2 reports.^ 

^ In addition, the amount Busby owed the Local was also 
reflected on the Local's financial reports the Local's accountant 
prepared. (Exs. 25-28) The 1991 Local 246 financial report 
contained a $2,891 entry under the heading "employee and member 
advances". (Ex. 25) This figure represented the total of Busby's 
personal charges charged in 1990 and 1991 and paid by the Local in 
1991. (Ex. 6) The 1992 financial report reflected a Local asset in 
the amount of $3,612 under the heading "employee and member 
advances". (Ex. 26) This figure represented the total of Busby's 
unpaid personal charges for 1990 through 1992. (Ex. 6) The 1993 
financial report reported that $3,967, the total of Busby's unpaid 
personal items for the years 1990 through 1993 (Ex. 6), was owed 
the Local for "employee and member advances". (Ex. 27) The 1994 



In addition, Busby's intent to embezzle was also 
demonstrated by his pattern of violating Section 4.1 of the IBT 
Secretary Treasurer's Manual which provides that "[U]nder no 
circumstances should personal expenses be charged to and/or run 
through the Local Union books." (emphasis in original) (Ex. 4) 
Busby, who testified that he read the Secretary Treasurer's Manual, 
ignored this provision. (Ex. 5 at 7) 

Given Busby's pattern of charging personal items on the 
Local's credit card in violation of the Secretary Treasurer's 
Manual and years passing without any, even partial, repayment, it 
is apparent that he intended to embezzle Local 246 funds. In any 
event, even if Busby was found not to have the fraudulent intent to 
embezzle, Busby appears to have brought reproach upon the IBT and 
breached his fiduciary duties by taking loans from the Local in 
excess of $2,000 in violation of federal criminal law. 

IV. PROPOSED CHARGES 

Based upon the foregoing, it is recommended that Arthur 

Busby be charged as follows: 

Between 1990 and the present, while an officer of Local 

246 you brought reproach upon the IBT, breached your fiduciary 

duties and embezzled approximately $3,967.00 in Local 246 funds and 

financial report reflected that $3,967 was "due from officer". (Ex. 
28) During his November 29, 1995 sworn examination, Busby 
testified that he reviewed the Local's financial reports the 
accountant prepared. (Ex. 5 at 65) Nevertheless, despite the fact 
that his personal charges owed to the Local were reflected on these 
financial reports, Busby did not repay the personal charges until 
after the Chief Investigator's records examination. 
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took loans in excess of $2,000 in violation of Article II, Section 
2(a) and Article XIX, Section 7(b)(1), (2) and (3) of the IBT 
Constitution, to wit: 

While an officer of Local 246, between 1990 and the 
present, you embezzled Local 246 funds by engaging in a pattern of 
charging personal items, totalling approximately $3,967.00, on the 
Local's American Express card. You then caused the Local to pay 
for these items. The personal expenses you incurred on the Local's 
American Express card included a $2,400 plumbing bill for repairs 
to your home in 1991. These personal charges were of no benefit to 
the union and were reflected in the Local's records as personal 
expenses paid on your behalf and loans to you. 

12 



EXHIBITS TO REPORT CONCERNING ARTHUR L. BUSBY 

Chief Investigator's Books and Records Notice dated 
November 6, 1995 
Arthur L. Busby personal check dated November 20, 1995 in 
the amount of $3,000 

Arthur L. Busby personal check dated November 24, 1995 in 
the amount of $2,084.88 
Excerpts from IBT Secretary Treasurer's Manual 

Sworn Examination of Arthur L. Busby dated November 29, 
1995 

Schedule of Arthur L. Busby's Personal Charges Not Repaid 
until after the Chief Investigator's Books and Records 
Examination 

Local 246 policy issued November 29, 1995 

Local 246 American Express bill with Closing Date August 
13, 1991 

Cash Receipts Journal for October 1991 for the Local's 
Defense Fund 
Local 246 Defense Fund Check number 1152 dated October 
31, 1991 payable to American Express in amount of 
$3,083.87 

Local 246 American Express bill with Closing Date 
November 11, 1990 

Sworn Examination of Eddie Vaden dated November 29, 1995 
Local 246 check number 20399 dated January 18, 1991 
payable to American Express in the amount of $2,204.55 

Local 246 .American Express bill with Closing Date October 
12, 1990 

Local 246 Executive Board meeting minutes for 1990 and 
1991 

Local 246 Form LM-2 for 1991 

Local 246 Form LM-2 for 1992 
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Local 246 Form LM-2 for 1993 
Local 246 Form LM-2 for 1994 

Local 246 American Express bill with Closing Date October 
13, 1991 
Local 246 American Express bill with Closing Date 
December 11, 1991 
Local 246 check number 21466 dated January 1, 1992 
payable to American Express in the amount of $914.20 

Local 246 American Express bill with Closing Date June 
11, 1993 
Local 246 check number 22848 dated July 1, 1993 payable 
to American Express in the amount of $2,636.83 and Local 
246 Defense fund check number 1240 dated July 1, 1993 
payable to American Express in the amount of $396.41 

Local 246 1991 Financial Report 

Local 246 1992 Financial Report 

Local 246 1993 Financial Report 

Local 246 1994 Financial Report 
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INDEPENDENT REVIEW BOARD 
444 North Capitol St., NW, Suite 528 

Washington, DC 20001 
(202) 434-8080 

Facsimile (202) 434-8084 
Corruption Hotline (800) CALL IRB 

Chief Investigator: 
Charles M. Carberry, Esq. 
17 Battery Place, Suite 331 
New York, NY 10004 

Administrator: 
John J. Cronin, Jr. 

April 15, 1997 

Board Members: 
Grant Crandall, Esq. 

Crandall, Pyles & Haviland 
1021 Quarrier Street 

Charleston, WV 25301 
Frederick B. Lacey, Esq. 

LeBoeuf, Lamb, Greene & MacRae 
One Riverfront Plaza 

Newark, NJ 07102-5490 
William H. Webster, Esq. 

Milbank, Tweed, Hadley & McCloy 
1825 Eye Street, NW, Suite 1100 

Washington, DC 20006 

General President Ron Carey 
International Brotherhood of Teamsters 
25 Louisiana Avenue, N.W. 
Washington, D.C. 20001 

Re: Decision on Charges against Local 246 
Officer Arthur L. Busby 

Dear Mr. Carey: 

The Independent Review Board has reviewed your decision of 
April 7, 1997, in the above-captioned matter, and finds the 
decision to be not inadequate. 

Very truly yours, 

By: 

Members of the 
Independent Revi3 h Board 

JohH^J. ,%5ronin, Jr. 
Administrator 

cc: Earl V. Brown, Jr., Esq. 
David Neigus, Esq. 
Arthur L. Busby 

Pursuant to the Consent Order of the United States District Court, S.D.N.Y. 
United States -v- International Brotherhood of Teamsters 88 CIV 4486 (DNE) 



This case arises out of proposed charges referred to me by the 
Independent Review Soard ("IRB"). The charges allege that Arthur 
3usby brought reproach upon the Union, breached his fiduciary duty, 
err.bezzled $3,967 in Local Union funds and took loans from the Local 
"Jnion in excess of $2,000, in violation of Article II, Section 
2!a), and Article XIX, Sections 7(b) (1), (2) and (3) of the IBT 
Constitution. Brother Busby is the former President and principal 
officer of Local 246. 

I appointed a hearing panel to conduct a hearing arid make 
findings and recommendations on the charges. The panel conducted 
a duly noticed hearing on the charges on December 11, 1996. 

II. The Evidence 

The evidence supporting the charges as introduced at the 
hearing consists of the IRB's report and accompanying exhibits. 
They show that between 1990 and 1993, Brother Busby used the Local 
246 American Express credit card to pay.for approximately $3,967.00 
in personal items. These items included an August 1991 bill for 
$2,400.00 for plumbing repairs to Brother Busby's home, bills for 
car repairs that were already covered by his car allowance, Amtrak 
tickets and other personal items. These items were paid for by the 
Local Union. Tine Local's LM-2s for 1991, 1992, and 1993, each 
signed by Brother Busby, reflect that in each year the Local Union 
had an outstanding loan to him that exceeded $2,000. Federal labor 
law prohibits a union from making a loan in excess of $2,000 to any 
officer. 

Brother Busby fully repaid the Local Union for the improper 
charges. He also paid the Local Union over $1,000 in interest on 
the improper charges, for a total of $5,084.88 that he repaid to 
the Local Union. However, he did not do so until after the office 
of the Chief Investigator for the Independent Review Board began an 
investigation of this conduct. 



Brother Busby admitted at the hearing that he caused the Local 
Ynicn to pay for personal items costing over $3,900 by charging 
t'r.er. on the Local union credit card ana thereby received a loan 
frr* the Local Union in excess of $2,0C0. He asserted that the 
charge for the plumbing repairs, the largest charge, was 
inadvertent, as his wife or daughter inadvertently used the Local 
Ynicr. rredit card rather than his personal credit card to pay the 
plur.ber when the repairs were made. He also claimed that other 
cnarges were inadvertent. 

While admitting that the charges were improper, Brother Busby 
strenuously denied that they constituted embezzlement. He insisted 
that he did not have any intent to defraud the Local Union.' In 
support, he pointed out that the charges were plainly carried on 
the Local's books and LM-2s, which he signed, as loans owed by him 
to the Local Union, and were not concealed. 

III. The Panel's Findings and Recommendations 

The panel found that Brother Busby's conduct in causing the 
Local Union to pay $3,967.00 for personal expenditures and in 
accepting a loan from the Local in excess of $2,000 brought 
reproach upon the Local Union, breached his fiduciary duty and 
violated federal labor law prohibiting loans in excess of $2,000 in 
any year to an officer by a union. The panel found, however, that 
there was insufficient evidence to prove that Brother Busby 
embezzled Local Union funds. 

As a penalty, the panel recommended, based on its findings, 
that Brother Busby be suspended from office and membership for one 
(1) year. In recommending this penalty, the panel considered that 
Brother Busby voluntarily removed himself from office in May 1996, 
almost one year ago. The panel also considered Brother Busby's 
candor and remorse for his actions. 

IV.Conclusion and Decision 

I concur with the panel's finding that Brother Busby has been 
proven guilty of bringing reproach upon the Union and breaching his 
fiduciary duty by causing the Local Union to pay $3,967.00 for 
personal expenditures and in accepting a loan from the Local in 
excess of $2,000, in violation of federal law. I also concur with 
the panel's finding that the embezzlement charge against Brother 
Busby was not proven. 

I must differ, however, with the panel on its recommended 
penalty. Based upon the undisputed evidence, a stronger penalty is 
warranted, as follows: 

Brother Busby is suspended from membership in the IBT and all 
I3T affiliates for one (1) year, effective on the date of this 
decision. Brother Busby is also barred from office and employment, 
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ling consulting wcrk, with the I3T and any I3T affiliate for 
.ro of three '3; years, retroactive to June 1, 1996, the date 
brother Busby voluntarily resigned from union office. Srother 
is also barred for three (3) years, retroactive to June 1, 
from receiving any compensation or benefits from the I3T or 

exceot for fully vested oension benefits. 

Ron Carey, 
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